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DECI SI ON

Appearances: Janes H. Barkley, Esq., Ofice of the Solicitor
U. S. Department of Labor, Denver, Col orado,
for Petitioner;
M. Leonard Ll oyd, Cobblestone LTD., Pagosa
Springs, Col orado,
pro se.

Bef ore: Judge Cett

These cases are before me upon the petitions for civi
penalties filed by the Secretary of Labor, pursuant to Section
105(b) of the Federal Mne Safety and Health Act of 1977, 30
U.S.C. 0801 et seq., the "Act", charging the operator
Cobbl estone LTD., with 21 violations of regulatory standards, set
forth in Part 56, Title 30, Code of Federal Regul ati ons.

The respondent filed a tinmely answer contesting the
citations and the proposed civil penalty assessnents. Pursuant to
noti ce served on the parties an evidentiary hearing was held on
the nerits. The primary issues are whether the respondent
violated the cited mandatory safety standards, and if so, the
appropriate civil penalties to be assessed for the violations
based on the criteria found in Section 110(i) of the Act.

MSHA | nspector Ronal d John Renowden and Roy Trujillo
i nspected the Cobbl estone pit and crusher on August 11th and
12t h, 1987. During the two day inspection MSHA issued 21
citations alleging violations of mandatory standards found in
Part 56, Title 30 Code of Federal Regul ations.

The Secretary of Labor on behalf of the Mne Safety and
Heal th Admini stration seeks affirmation of each of the citations
and proposed civil penalty assessnents.
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STl PULATI ONS

After taking the testinmny of MSHA I nspector Ronald John
Renowden as to certain violative conditions he observed during
MSHA' s i nspection, the parties stipulated that the facts recorded
on the face of each citation by the MSHA inspectors "truly and
accurately represent the conditions as they existed at the tine
of the inspection". Cobblestone while stipulating that the facts
alleged in the citations are "true and accurate" and in existence
as recorded in the citations at the time of inspection, denies
there was any violation on the basis that the crushing equi prent
was never operated in the violative condition observed at the
time of the inspection. It is undisputed that the crushing
equi pment was not operated at any time during the two days of
i nspection. The parties agree that these stipulations apply to
each of the citations in docket numbers, WEST 88-62-M WEST
88-64-M and WEST 88-120-M

The parties also stipulated that the operator's busi ness was
smal | .

DOCKET NO. WEST 88-62-M
Citation No. 2636670

Citation No. 2636670 alleges a "serious and significant"
violation of 30 C.F. R 0O 56.18002. After taking testinony from
Inspector Trujillo, the Secretary noved to vacate the citation on
the grounds that it was duplicative in that the citation was
based sol ely upon the observation of specific violative
conditions for which the operator had already been cited. There
was no objection to the notion. The notion to vacate the citation
was granted.

Citation No. 2636670 and its related proposed civil penalty
are each vacat ed.

The El ectrical Related Citations Nos. 2636579, 2636580, 2636581
2636582, 2636583, 2636584, 2636585, 2636586, 2636662, 2636665,
2636667, 2636668, 2636669, and 2636587.

The remaining 14 citations of Docket No. 88-62-M are al
electrical related citations involving the crusher plant and
equi pnment. The operator's primary defense for these citations as
well as all the other citations was that he had just noved the
crusher fromone |ocation at the site to another, and had not
operated the crusher at the new | ocati on. He had been trying but
said he was unable as of the tinme of the inspection to get an
electrician to cone to the renote area where the plant was
| ocated to do the necessary electrical work and testing. The
operator testified in detail how three weeks before the
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i nspection he had noved his crusher fromone |ocation to another
| ocation at the site so that it was closer to the electric shed
It was the operator's contention and testinony that he had not
operated the crushing plant since he noved the crusher and
therefore the plant was never in operation at a tine when the
viol ative conditions observed by the inspector were in existence.
He al so contended that the crusher's toggle plate had been
renmoved for nodification and consequently that the crusher was

i noper abl e.

The MSHA inspectors Renowden and Trujillo testified about
their long experience in mning and their observations during the
i nspection including the size and | ocation of nuck piles. Based
upon their experience and their observation they testified that
the crusher had been in operation after it was noved and that it
was clear to themfromtheir observations that the crushing pl ant
had been in operation while the violative condition they observed
during their inspection were in existence.

M. Lloyd, the operator, contended that there was only one
pile of material of any substance and that was a pile of materia
he transported to a conveyor and used to adjust or "train" the
conveyor.

| credit the testinmony of |nspectors Renowden and Trujillo
and on the basis of their testinmony and expertise find that the
crushing plant was in operation at least for a linmted period of
time, after the crusher had been nmoved and the violative
conditions observed by the MSHA i nspectors were present. In
addition, it is undisputed that the crushing plant was fully
energi zed at the time of inspection and that none of the
equi pnent was | ocked out or tagged out.

Seven of the remaining 14 citations allege a violation of 30
C.F.R 0 56.12008, which provides as foll ows:

Power wires and cables shall be insul ated adequately
where they pass into or out of electrical conpartnents.
Cabl es shall enter metal franes of notors, splice
boxes, and electrical conpartments only through proper
fittings. Wen insulated wires, other than cabl es, pass
through netal frames, the holes shall be substantially
bushed wi th insul ated bushings.

The seven citations which charged a violation of the above
quoted 30 C.F.R. [ 56.12008 are Citation Nos. 2636579, 2636583,
2636584, 2636585, 2636586, 2636662, and 2636587.

Citation No. 2636579 charges as foll ows:

The 2/4 G GC, 600-2000V, rubber power cable exiting the
notor starter enclosure for the jaw crusher, 50 h.p.
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60 anp, 480 VAC notor branch circuit was not properly installed
inits respective fitting. The | oose cable fitting has all owed
the cable to slide out of the squeeze zone and exposed the
interval wires to the fitting edge and strain relief clanp, not
to nention that the cable wei ght was bei ng supported by the power
connection in the enclosure. No vibration or flexing occurs at
this location. Should the cable insulation fail and cause an
arcing fault a person could be exposed to arc flashing. The box
had a ground circuit via conduit at the panel

In view of the stipulation of the parties that the citation
accurately docunents the conditions observed by the inspector and
my finding that the crusher had been in operation while those
conditions existed. | find that a violation of 30 CF.R O
56.12008 was established. Citation No. 2636579 is affirnmed.

The appropriate penalty for this violation and each of the
establ i shed viol ati ons di scussed below will be found and
di scussed in due course under the heading "penalty".

Citation No. 2636583 charges as foll ows:

The 10/ 4 type 50 rubber power cable exiting the 480 VAC
3 phase motor starter at the switch house for the
"stacker feed" conveyor drive notor was observed not
bei ng provided with a cable entrance fitting. Tape had
been gobbed on the cable in a effort to support and
protect it where it entered the sharp nmetal hole at the
bottom of the enclosure.

| credit the testinony of the MSHA inspectors. | find and
conclude on the basis of their credible testinony, the
stipulation that the citation accurately describes the conditions
existing at the tine of the inspection and ny finding that the
crusher plant and equi pmrent had been in operation while those
conditions existed, that there was a violation of 30 CF.R O
56.12008. Citation No. 2636583 is affirmed.

Citation No. 2636584 charges as foll ows:

The 12/ 4 and 10/ 4 type 50 rubber power cables entering
and exiting the 480 VAC, 3 phase nmotor starter

encl osure which serviced 480 volts to the "fines
stacker" notor circuit were observed not being provided
with cable entrance fittings to protect the cable from
sharp netal hol e edges, and to support the cable to
prevent strain on the starter 480 volt term nate tape
had been gobbed in areas around the cable to protect
the wiring fromsharp edge wear.

In view of the stipulation of the parties that the citation
accurately docunments the conditions observed by the inspector and
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ny finding that the crusher had been in operation while those
conditions existed. | find that a violation of 30 CF.R 0O
56. 12008 was established. Citation No. 2636584 is affirnmed.

Citation No. 2636585 charges as foll ows:

The 12/ 4 type 50 rubber power cables entering and
exiting the 480 volt, 3 phase notor starter enclosure
for the stacker notor circuit, were not provided with
cable fittings to protect the cable wiring and prevent
strain at on 480 volt term nations. Tape had been used
to provi de some protection agai nst damage.

I credit the testinony of the MSHA inspectors. | find and
conclude on the basis of their credible testinony, the
stipulation that the citation accurately describes the conditions
existing at the tine of the inspection and ny finding that the
crusher plant and equi prent had been in operation while those
conditions existed, that there was a violation of 30 CF.R O
56.12008. Citation No. 2636585 is affirmed.

Citation No. 2636586 charges as foll ows:

A strain relief cable fitting was not provided at the 2
hp, 480 VAC, 3 phase fines discharge notor junction box
for the 14/ 4 type "50" rubber power cable. A rubber
gronmet exi sted which afforded damage protection.

In view of the stipulation of the parties that the citation
accurately docunents the conditions observed by the inspector and
my finding that the crusher had been in operation while those
conditions existed. | find that a violation of 30 CF.R O
56.12008 was established. Citation No. 2636586 is affirnmed.

Citation No. 2636662 charges as foll ows:

Ground continuity and resistance of the grounding
system had not been done at the plant. It was evident
that quite a bit of crushing had been done.

| credit the testinmony of the MSHA inspectors. | find and
conclude on the basis of their credible testinony, the
stipulation that the citation accurately describes the conditions
existing at the tine of the inspection and ny finding that the
crusher plant and equi prent had been in operation while those
conditions existed, that there was a violation of 30 CF.R O
56.12008. Citation No. 2636662 is affirned.

Citation No. 2636587 charges as foll ows:

The 10/ 4 50 power cable servicing 480 VAC, three phase
power to the 5 hp, 480 VAC, fines stacker notor was not
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provided with a cable entrance fitting. The damage was observed
and tape had been gobbed around the cable to provide damage
protection.

In view of the stipulation of the parties that the citation
accurately documents the conditions observed by the inspector and
nmy finding that the crusher had been in operation while those
conditions existed. | find that a violation of 30 CF.R O
56.12008 was established. Citation No. 2636587 is affirnmed.

The next two citation Nos. 2636580 and 2636581 each all ege a
viol ation of the safety standard 30 C.F. R 0O 56.12030, which
provi des as foll ows:

When a potentially dangerous condition is found it
shall be corrected before equi pnent or wiring is
energi zed.

Citation No. 2636580 charges as foll ows:

The 5 h.p. 7 anp, 480 VAC, 3 phase notor starter at the
swi tch- house for the "feed hopper"” notor branch circuit
was observed having an arcing ground fault condition
existing in the renote/local control circuit. The white
480 VAC control phase conductor in a 12/4 cable was
observed bei ng damaged and exposed the bare conductor
The bare damaged area had been | ayi ng agai nst the right
i nsi de edge of the motor starter where it had been
arcing to ground, in the unreliably grounded w re 480
VAC system The control circuit was tapped to the |ine
side of the starter and the circuit was protected by a
20 anp inverse time circuit breaker. This condition
created a likelihood for a serious electrical accident
or possible fatality to occur

In view of nmy findings that the crushing plant had been in
operation while the condition described in the citation was in
exi stence, it is found that a violation of 30 C.F. R 0 56.12030
was established. Citation No. 2636580 is affirned.

Citation No. 2636581 charges as foll ows:

The 12/3 and 12/ 4 type 50 cabl es used between the
circuit breaker panel and the notor starter switchgear
at the switch-house was observed being cracked and
brittle which exposed bare 480 volt conductor. In sone
cases the bare wiring was exposed to netal enclosure
framewor k and covers, and because the cover panel was
off the main 225 anp 480 volt panel the cracked
defective wiring was exposed in an accessi bl e manner.
Arc flash burns and electric
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shock could result in the event of unintentional contact or a
faulted condition. Gravity of this condition was increased by the
unreliable safety grounding circuits. The stacker circuit tested
hi gh resistance phase to phase on the cable fromthe breaker to

the starter.

In view of my findings that the crushing plant had been in
operation while the condition described in the citation was in
exi stence, it is found that a violation of 30 C F. R 0O 56.12030
was established. Citation No. 2636581 is affirmed.

Citation No. 2636582, issued under section 104(a), alleges a
violation of 30 C.F.R [0 56.12002. The citation charges as
fol |l ows:

The General Electric, CR206B1, NEMA Size "O' notor
controller rated at nmaxi mumuse of 5 HP at 480 volts
was observed being used beyond the design intended by
t he manufacturer, in that, a 3 hp 460 VAC "under jaw'
conveyor notor, a 2 hp 460 volt "fines" discharge
conveyor notor, and the jaw shaker screen, 10 or 15 hp
(manpl ate m ssing) were all operated simultaneously by
the underrated Size "O' starter. The total horsepower
was cal culated to be at least 15 hp

Addi tional ly, because of this condition the notor
runni ng overl oad protection provided at the controller
unit (sized C15.18) was rated at 12.9 anps, trip @
16. 12 anps for the 10 hp nmotor. Therefore, the two
smal l er nmotors were not properly protected agai nst
overload. The circuit breaker for the branch circuit
was 20 anps.

The cited regulatory standard 30 C.F.R [ 56.12002 provides
as follows:

El ectric equi pment and circuits shall be provided with
switches or other controls. Such switches or controls
shall be of approved design and construction and shal
be properly installed.

The record, including the stipulations and ny findings that
the crusher plant was operated while in the condition observed hy
the inspector were in existence establishes a violation of 30
C.F.R [ 56.12002. This citation was issued as S & S violation.
However, the MSHA inspector on the same day he issued the
citation nodified the citation froman S & Sto a non S & S
violation. As nodified to a non S & S violation, Citation No.
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Citation No. 2636662 charges as foll ows:

Ground continuity and resistance of the grounding
system had not been done at the plant. It was evident
that quite a bit of crushing had been done.

The cited mandatory standard 30 C.F. R 0O 56.12028 provi des
as follows:

Continuity and resistance of grounding systens shall be
tested i mMmedi ately after installation, repair, and

nodi fication; and annually thereafter. A record of the
resi stance neasured during the nost recent tests shal
be made avail able on a request by the Secretary or his
duly authorized representative.

In view of the parties stipulation and my finding that the
crushing plant had been in operation while the condition alleged
inthis citation was in existence a violation of 30 CF. R 0O
56. 12028 was established. Citation No. 2636662 is affirned.

Citation No. 2636665 as anended reads as foll ows:

"A bad splice was observed on the 14/4 SO cabl e t hat
was spliced to a 12/4 SO cable that was not (b)
insulated to a degree at |east equal to that of the
original and sealed to exclude noisture and (c)

provi ded wi th damage protection as near as possible to
that of the original, including good bonding to the
outer jacket. This splice was approximately three feet
fromfront discharge conveyor notor."

The cited safety standard 30 C. F. R [ 56.12013 provi des as
fol |l ows:

Per manent splices and repairs made in power cables,

i ncluding the ground conductor where provided, shal

be:

(a) Mechanically strong with electrical conductivity as
near as possible to that of the original

(b) Insulated to a degree at |east equal to that of the
original, and seal ed to exclude noisture; and

(c) Provided with damage protection as near as possible
to that of the original, including good bonding to the
outer jacket.

It is clear fromthe record including the stipulation of the
parties that the citation accurately describes the condition
observed by the inspector and ny finding that the crusher plant
had been in operation while those conditions were in existence
that there was a violation of the provisions of 30 CF. R 0O
56.12013. Citation No. 2636665 is affirnmed.
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Citation 2636667 charges as foll ows:

The 20 anmp circuit breaker, the principle power switch

for the stacker notor was not | abeled to show what unit
it controlled. ldentification could not be readily made
by | ocati on.

The cited mandatory standard provides as foll ows:

Principle power switches shall be | abeled to show which
units they control, unless identification can be nade
readily by | ocation.

I credit the testinony of the MSHA inspectors. | find and
conclude on the basis of their credible testinony, the
stipulation that the citation accurately describes the conditions
existing at the tine of the inspection and ny finding that the
crusher plant and equi prent had been in operation while those
conditions existed, that there was a violation of 30 CF.R O
56.12018. Citation No. 2636667 is affirnmed.

Citation No. 2636668 alleges a violation of 30 CF. R [
56. 12008 as fol | ows:

The 2/ 4 power cable entering jaw crusher notor termna
box was not properly installed in that the restraining
strap had conme | oose allowi ng the weight of the cable
to put a strain on the 480 V conductor connection

i nside the junction box. There is a lot of vibration in
this area fromthe jaw crusher

In view of my findings that the crushing plant has been in
operation while the condition described in the citation was in
exi stence, it is found that a violation of 30 C F.R 0O 56.12008
was established. Citation No. 2636668 is affirmed.

Citation No. 2636669 alleges a violation of 30 CF.R O
56. 12004 as foll ows:

The power cable |aying al ongside feed conveyor and feed
hopper had been subjected to mechani cal danage from
rock falling from conveyor. Sone danage was observed on
cabl es where they had been hit by falling rocks.

The cited mandatory standard 30 C.F. R 0O 56.12004 provides
as follows:

El ectrical conductors shall be of a sufficient size and
current-carrying capacity to ensure that a rise in
t emper
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ature resulting fromnormal operations will not damage the
insulating materials. Electrical conductors exposed to nmechanica
damage shall be protected.

I nspector Trujillo testified that the el ectrical conductors
al ong side the feed conveyor and feed hopper were exposed to
mechani cal damage and were not protected. M. Lloyd testified
that he put the boulders on the cable to protect the cable and
that he did not see any damage to the cable.

The Secretary presented evidence that there were dents in
the power cable where 20 to 25 pounds boul ders had fallen on the
cable. The boulders were intermttently on the cable where you
woul d normal |y expect to find boulders falling off the side of an
incline conveyor. M. Trujillo stated that if someone were going
to try to protect the power cable with boulders they woul d have
put themall along the length rather than intermttently and they
woul d not have put the boulder right on top of the cable because
when another rock hits that rock on the cable it woul d damage the
cabl e.

I credit the testinony of Inspector Trujillo. The electrica
conductors in question were unprotected and exposed to nechanica
damage. The violation of 30 C F.R 0O 56.12004 was establi shed.
Citation No. 2636669 is affirnmed.

DOCKET NO. WEST 88-64- M
Citation No. 2636577

Citation No. 2636577, when issued charged the enployer with
a "significant and substantial" violation of safety standard 30
C.F.R [0 56.12032 for failure to keep the cover panel for a
circuit breaker distribution panel in place.

The citation in relevant part reads as foll ows:

The encl osure/ cover panel for the general electric

480/ 277 volt AC, 3 phase, 225 anp, 4 wire, circuit

di stribution panel board, |ocated at the main notor
control switch house was not in place. This exposed the
bare termnal (partially) of the 480 VAC | oad-side
termnals, and cracked-brittle "50" cable bare wring
at the panel. The panel contained approximtely 9
circuit breakers for motor circuits and no testing or
repairs were being performed in the panel at the tinme
of inspection.

Shoul d an electric fault occur at the panel, with the
cover off, and a worker was exposed to the event, it is
reasonably |ikely he would receive serious electric arc
flash burns.
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The cited standard 30 C.F. R 0O 56.12032 provides:

I nspection and cover plates on electrical equipnment and
junction boxes shall be kept in place at all tines
except during testing or repairs.

I nspect or Renowden testified that the cover panel for the
general electric 480/277 VAC, 3 phase, 225 anpere, 4 wire,
circuit breaker panel board was not in place at the time of his
i nspection. No testing or repairs were being done. The bare,
energi zed conductors within the panel board were readily
accessi bl e.

The citation when issued characterized the violation as
"significant and substantial". At the hearing after both sides
presented their evidence on this citation the Secretary's counse
conferred off the record with the inspector and then noved to
amend the citation to reflect a non S & S violation rather than
an S & S violation. There was no objection to the notion. The
noti on was granted.

I nspect or Renowden's testinmony clearly shows that there was
a violation of 30 CF.R [O 56.12032. Citation No. 2636577 as
anmended by the Secretary to a non S & S violation, is affirnmed.

Citation No. 2636664

Citation No. 2636664 issued under section 104(a) of the Act,
all eges a violation of the mandatory safety standard 30 CF. R O
56. 14001. The citation reads as foll ows:

The V-Belt drive on head pulley on INT Conveyor was not
provided with a guard. This V-Belt drive could be
contacted very easily. Sonme crushing had been done.

The cited safety standard 0O 56. 14001 nmandates that head
pul l eys "which nay be contacted by persons and whi ch may cause
injury to persons", shall be guarded. Inspector Roy Trujillo
testified that the guard on the internedi ate conveyor head pull ey
was not in place at the time of the inspection. The V-Belt in
guestion canme froman electric mtor that was "bigger" than a 3/4
quarter horsepower notor. The V-Belt drive was used to operate an
i nternmedi ate conveyor that carried rocks over to the stacker
conveyor. There were many cobbl estones in the area ranging from4
to 8 inches in dianeter and bigger. Consequently, the footing in
the area was not secure. He observed footprints in the area but
he coul d not determ ne whet her anyone was wal ki ng through the
area when the plant was running. M. Trujillo testified that if
soneone shoul d stunble while wal king by when the belt was running
and try and catch hinself by putting a hand out where it would be



~1008

caught by the pinch point, it would probably tear his armoff. In
his opinion a fall in the area was reasonably likely. It would be
a serious injury that would involve hospitalization and many | ost
wor k days.

M. Trujillo testified that he was sure the plant had been
crushing a short tinme before the inspection but could not testify
that the guard was off at a tinme when the belt was in operation
The operator told the inspector that the guard was not in place
because it was being repaired. Wien the inspector return the next
day to conplete the inspection the guard was in place. The
i nspector testified however, that he did not notice anything that
indicated to himthat the guard had been repaired.

M. Lloyd testified the guard was off because it was being
repaired and the belt in question had not been operating while
the guard was off. There was no contrary evidence. | find no
per suasi ve evidence that the belt and pulley had been operated
with its guard off. Under the circunmstance there is no persuasive
evi dence of a violation of the cited safety standard which
expressly requires the pulley be guarded only when the noving
parts may be contacted by persons and which may cause injury to
the persons. Since the guard was off while the pulley and belt
were not nmoving there is no violation of the cited safety
standard. Citation No. 2636664 is vacated. The decision on this
citation turns not on the issue of credibility but on the safety
standard' s express requirenent of exposure and the insufficiency
of the evidence to establish exposure.

DOCKET NO. WEST 88-120- M
Citation No. 2636578

Citation No. 2636578 charges the operator of Cobbl estone
with a "significant and substantial" violation of the nmandatory
safety standard 30 C.F. R 0 56.12025. The cited standard provides
as follows:

Al metal enclosing or encasing electrical circuits
shal | be grounded or provided with equival ent
protection. This requirenment does not apply to
battery-operated equi pment.

Citation No. 2636578 charges as foll ows:

I nspection of the safety groundi ng system has reveal ed
t hat inproper and unsafe groundi ng existed as descri bed
in the follow ng discussion. The power to the crushing
pl ant was supplied by three pole munted 50 KVA, high
vol tage single phase transfornmers connected Y-Y. The
secondary was connected in a 480 volt grounded WE
(STAR) service and was "earth" grounded at the power
pol e butt ground. The four
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service conductors was a Quadrapl ex aerial drop of approximtely
30-35 feet to the main 200 anp service fused di sconnect outside
on the side of the electrical switch house. The fourth wire, or
system groundi ng conductor was fed directly through the main 200
anp service switch and was term nated to the NEUTRAL term nal bar
at the 225 anp, 3 phase 400 480 VAL distribution panel inside the
switch house. The NEUTRAL bar was | NSULATED from the netal pane
encl osure and no bondi ng junper existed. A bare ground wre was
terminated to the panel franme and extended to the main switch
out side, where it was al so connected to the netal box frane, and
it was these connected/ternm nated to an earth driven copper
ground rod bel ow the 200 anp switch. This wiring nethod created a
hi gh resi stance/i npedance value in the safety ground system
bet ween the ground transformer |ocation at the power pole, and
the ground rod beneath the 200 anp nmin disconnect at the switch
house. This unsafe practice/condition was detected by visua
observation and verified with electrical testing instrunents:
OHMETER @ nmegohns; "Biddle" insulation tester, on ohnms scale @
200 ohms. In the event of a ground fault condition it is highly
likely that the circuit protective devices will not function as
needed, and coul d expose el ectrocuti on hazards to the workers at
the plant. . . . (The electrical systemwas tested for a ground fault by
this electrical inspector, and none was detected - otherw se a
i mm nent danger closure order would have been issued) On 8/12/87
@ 1400 hrs during an inpedance test it was found that the fines
stacker drive motor was not grounded.

The record satisfactorily established that there was a
violation of the mandatory groundi ng requirenents of the safety
standard 30 C.F.R [O 56.12025. The violation could have
contributed to a fatal electric shock by allowing the electric
current to flow through a mner's body rather than through the
groundi ng conductor. The violation resulted fromthe operator's
negli gence. The violation of the provisions of 30 CF. R 0O
56.12025 was established. Citation No. 2636578 is affirnmed.

The appropriate penalty for this violation and each of the
established violations will be discussed bel ow under the headi ng
"penal ty".

Citation No. 2636661

Citation No. 2636661 (as well as Citation No. 2636663)
al l eges a 104(a) violation of 30 C.F.R [ 56.14001. The citation
char ges:

The V-Belt drive and pulleys were not provided with
guards on the fines discharge conveyor. This V-Belt was
approximately 3 to 4 feet fromthe ground | evel and the
pi nch points could be contacted easily.
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The cited regulation, 30 C F.R 0O 56.14001 provi des as foll ows:

Gears; sprockets; chains; drive, head, tail, and takeup
pul I eys; flywheels; couplings; shafts; sawbl ades; fan
inlets; and sim|ar exposed noving machi ne parts which
may be contacted by persons, and which nmay cause injury
to persons, shall be guarded.

Inspector Trujillo testified that the V-Belts were 3 to 4
feet above ground and the pinch points could be easily contacted
by a person and could easily cause injury. The violation of 30
C.F. R 0 56. 14001 was established. Citation No. 2636661 is
af firmed.

Citation No. 2636663

Citation No. 2636663, issued under section 104(a) of the
Act, charges the operator with a violation of 30 C.F. R 0O
56.14001 which is quoted above under the heading "Citation No.
2636661". Citation No. 2636663 alleges that the V-Belt drive and
pul l eys on the jaw crusher were not provided with guards. The
evi dence presented by petitioner established that there was an
unguarded pinch point was about 5 1/2 feet above the ground that
was readily accessible. The operator testified that the bul
wheel of the crusher traveled in the opposite direction fromthe
direction clainmed by the inspector and thus that the pinch point
was 3 feet higher than the hei ght asserted by the inspector
Respondent clained therefor that the pinch point was protected by
| ocation. Petitioner contends that there was no protection by
| ocation even if the the pinch point was 8 1/2 feet high rather
than 5 1/2 feet high. Petitioner also presented evidence that in
addition to the pinch point hazard there was the hazard fromthe
unguarded revol vi ng spokes of the bull wheel

| credit the testinmony of the mne inspector and find there
was a violation of 30 C.F.R [ 56.14001. Citation No. 2636663 is
af firnmed.

Citation No. 2636666

Citation No. 2636666 issued under section 104(a) of the Act,
all eges a violation of mandatory standard 30 C.F.R 0O 56.12018.
The citation reads as foll ows:

The 20 anp 3 pole circuit breaker, the principal power
switch for the fines stacker was not | abeled to show
what unit it controlled. ldentification could not be
readi |y made by | ocati on.
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The cited standard 30 C.F. R 0O 56.12018 provides:

Princi pal power switches shall be | abeled to show which
unit they control, unless identification can be made
readily by |l ocation.

It clearly appears fromthe record that the principal power
switch for the fines stacker was not |abeled as required by the
cited mandatory safety standard. The violation of 30 CF. R 0O
56.12018 was established. Citation No. 2636666 is affirnmed.

PENALTY

Section 110(i) of the Act mandates consideration of six
criteria in assessing appropriate civil penalties:

(1) The size of the business and the appropriateness of the
penalty to the size;

(2) The effect on the operator's ability to continue in
busi ness;

(3) The operator's history of previous violation;
(4) Whether the operator was negligent;
(5) The gravity of the violations;

(6) Whether the good faith was denonstrated in attenpting to
achi eve pronpt abatenent of the violation

Wth respect to size, Cobblestone is owned and operated by
Leonard Lloyd. It is alnpobst a one-man operation. M. Lloyd does
practically all of the mining and milling work with a little help
fromhis son and one other part-tinme person. M. Lloyd testified
that he has no enpl oyees.

The gravel pit and crushing equipnent is |ocated on ten
acres of M. Lloyd' s 120 acre honesite. Evidence was presented
t hat Cobbl est one grossed $45,000 from January 1, 1988 to October
5, 1988. It has three or four thousand dollars outstanding
accounts receivable. M. Lloyd has additional inconme of $2,000 to
$3,000 fromhis jewel ry business which he works at during the
Wi nter nonths.

M. Lloyd testified that he was four nonths delinquent in
hi s payments on a $366, 000. 00 note that is secured by his
acreage, his residence, and business of Cobbl estone including al
equi pment. M. Lloyd stated that Cobbl estone has not been able to
gross the anmount needed to cover the notes. In view of his
del i nquency of four nortgage paynents the nortgagor has asserted
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its right of acceleration on the note and turned it over to its
attorney's for collection. The amount due is $366, 000. 00 pl us
interest at 11.25 percent per annum Cobbl estone has a second
nortgage in the sum of $50,000.00. The annual anpunt due on these
two notes is approxi mately $50, 000.00 a year

The operator's history of previous violations is set forth
in Exhibit P-1 which is the printout of the assessed violations
in the history report. The printout shows that the operator has
at least a noderate history of previous violations.

Wth respect to the gravity of the violations |Inspector
Renowden testified that in the electrical related citations which
he characterized as significant and substantial the gravity is
hi gh. The hazards that resulted fromthese violations are
primarily potential electric shock and el ectrocution and ther nal
arc flash burns. He believed there was a substantial possibility
that the injuries would either be an el ectrocution, electrical
shock or flash burns. There was a likelihood of |oss work days or
restricted duty fromsuch an injury.

Wth respect to each citation that he marked S & S it was
hi s opi nion based on his occupational background and expertise
that injuries would be reasonably likely to occur and there was a
reasonabl e |i kelihood of a serious injury.

Each of the citations on its face indicate that the number
that could be exposed to the potential hazard was one. The person
nost likely to be exposed to the hazard is the operator hinself
since he is the one who does practically all the work
Irrespective of the nunmber of persons exposed to the hazards the
gravity of the violation is high in view of the seriousness of
the potential injury.

M. Lloyd, the operator nmoved the crusher from one |ocation
to anot her approxinmately three weeks prior to the inspection. He
testified that he had been attenpting to get an electrician to
check over and correct the electrical work he perfornmed in noving
the crusher to its new | ocation. He contends that any equi pment
he operated was in the nature of alignment and adjustnment so the
pl ant would be able to go into production. He states that at the
time of the inspection he was still preparing the equi pnment for
comerci al production. | have found however, on the basis of the
testimony the MSHA inspectors that while he may still have been
in the process of making some adjustnents and corrections, that
he was operating his crushing equipnment. | find that the
violations cited were the result of the operator's negligence.
characterized negligence as ordinary negligence which is al so
known as noderate negligence.



~1013

The operator presented evidence of his difficulty in neeting the
paynment due on the notes secured by his heavily nortgaged
property and equi pnent and his inability to pay the proposed
penal ties. The operator has financial difficulties. However, | do
not believe the appropriate penalties assessed in this case wll
constitute the difference between the operator continuing or not
continuing in business.

M. Lloyd's good faith was denmonstrated by his abatenment of
each of the cited violations within the extended ti me MSHA
al l owed himfor abatenent of the violations.

Based on the statutory criteria set forth in section 110(i)
of the Act and also taking into consideration that the operator
was essentially engaged in a one-nman operation, had recently
noved the crusher fromone | ocation to another and was trying to
obtain the services of an electrician to check the work and
correct any hazards and the business's serious financia
difficulty | find that the appropriate civil penalty for each of
the violations as follows:

30 CF.R
Citation No. Vi ol at ed Assessed Penalty

2636578 56. 12025 $ 250. 00
2636661 56. 14001 100. 00
2636663 56. 14001 50. 00
2636666 56.12018 20. 00
2636577 56.12032 50. 00
2636579 56.12008 20. 00
2636580 56. 12030 40. 00
2636581 56. 12030 30. 00
2636582 56. 12002 20. 00
2636583 56. 12008 20. 00
2636584 56. 12008 20. 00
2636585 56. 12008 20. 00
2636586 56. 12008 20. 00
2636662 56.12028 20. 00
2636665 56.12013 30. 00
2636667 56.12018 20. 00
2636668 56. 12008 30. 00
2636669 56.12004 20. 00
2636587 56. 12008 20. 00

$800. 00

ORDER

1. Citation No. 2636577 is nodified to delete the
characterization "significant and substantial" and as so nodified
af firmed.
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2. Citation Nos. 2636664 and 2636670 and their rel ated proposed
penal ti es are each vacat ed.

The respondent Cobbl estone Ltd is directed to pay the civil
penal ti es assessed in these proceedings within forty (40) days of
the date of these decisions. Upon receipt of paynent, these
proceedi ngs are disni ssed.

August F. Cetti
Adm ni strative Law Judge



